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An excellent example of the Victorian style used for schools in 1875 can
be found in the buildings that house the Administration Offices of the San
Antonio Independent School District. Originally constructed by the City and used
as a combination fire station and Fourth Ward School, this is the only structure
left of the original five schools in the district.

Located at 141 Lavaca across from Hemisfair Plaza, the site for the Federal
Courthouse and Federal Office Building, and two blocks from the King William
District, these administration buildings provide a vital link between the modern
buildings to the north and the historic King William area to the south. The
original architect and builder are not known but the structures reflect the
strong German-Victorian craftsmenship known to this area at that time. The style
is classified as Victorian-Italianate by the San Antonio Historic Survey.

The two rectangular stone buildings are built perpendicular to each other,
forming a "L" shape, and are connected by an "L" shaped porch. They are both
two-story, have a hip roof and gables, and load bearing walls. The eaves around
the buildings are decorated with wooden modillions and consoles.

Building A (See the site plan), housing the Superintendent's Office is
constructed of limestone and is 84 feet by 33 feet. It contains four gables
one on each side with a circular wooden vent. This vent is surrounded by a wide
smooth stone trim. The eaves of the gables are decorated with wooden modillions
whereas the eaves at the end are ornamented with wooden consoles. All four
edges of the building are decorated with quoins.

The east facade is divided into three bays with a gable roof over the center
bay. The second floor contains a series of four windows with transoms in each
bay. The windows in the center bay have a single smooth stone lintel. The first
floor has a series of windows in each bay with a single smooth stone lintel
except for the left bay which contains a door, a later addition. All the

— windows are six over six glass lights and have sills of smooth stone.

The south facade contains a series of six windows with a single smooth stone
lintel and sill. The windows on the second floor have transoms. The bottom
part of the building is plastered. The first floor of the west facade has a
series of round arched openings, two are doorways and five are windows with stone
sills. A third doorway has a stone lintel. The limestone on the lower part of
the building has been covered with plaster. A concrete porch and stairs were
added at a later date and the ends on the second floor porch were enclosed for
a storage room and a ladies lounge. The second floor contains three doorways
alternating with windows. The openings have a smooth stone segmental arch and
the windows have a smooth stone sill.

A later concrete addition projects outward from the north facade of the original
building. The first floor contains a door to the left of the addition and a
window to the right. The second floor contains a window on each side.
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The second building (Bldg. B) is constructed of quarry-face stone and is
45 by 52 feet. The north facade is divided into three bays. The center bay
projects outward and is crowned with a gable roof decorated with coupled consoles
beneath the eaves. The gable contains a wooden roof vent with a round stone arch
with a smooth keystone. The center bay contains four windows, two on each floor
whereas each of the side bays contain two windows on the second floor and a
window and door on the first floor. The lintels for all the openings and the
window sills are of stone.

The west facade contains a series of six windows which are divided into three
bays by wooden pilasters. The upper windows have a wooden lintel and the lower
windows contain a stone lintel. All windows have a stone sill. The eaves of the
roof are decorated with wooden consoles.

The first floor of the south facade contains a lintel window and a door on
the left half and three windows and a door on the right. The second floor
contains two doors with transoms on the left and three windows and a door on the
right. The porches were replaced with concrete ones at a later date. Although
the columns on the first floor are concrete, the second floor contains square
wooden columns with moulded capitals. A wooden scalloped Victorian trim joins
the capitals of the columns.

The first floor of the east facade contains a door with a transom to the
left of the building and two equally spaced windows with stone lintels and sills
to the right. There are two identical windows on the second floor.

The San Antonio Independent School District Administrative Center is located
on a beautiful corner lot with several large pecan trees and well kept lawn
areas which contribute to an air of serenity and peace to the facility and
substance to the neighborhood. It is accessible to the central business district
and highly adaptable for reuse.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In 1875 the first school system was established in San Antonio and fourteen
teachers were assigned to five schools. One of these schools, the Fourth Ward
was located at the corner of Lavaca and Matagorda and occupied the second floor
of a building constructed by the City while the first floor served as a fire
station. This is the only building left of the original five schools and is
reflective of the type of architecture used in the schools. The same building
is now the Administration Office for the San Antonio Independent School District,
the oldest and largest school district in the city, and houses the Superintendent's
Office. Located close to the Alamo and within two blocks of the historical King

i William District, the school served the educational needs of many prominent
members of the community.

The first floor of the building constructed by the City of San Antonio in
1875 served as a fire station until 1882 and the second floor contained the Fourth
Ward School. The entire structure became the Seventh Ward School in 1882. The
structure served as the Page School Annex until it was converted to offices in
the late 1920's. It continues to serve the same purpose today.

The first step toward the establishment of a permanent system of free public
education was taken on January 4, 1853. The City Council appointed three of its
members as a Committee on Education and instructed them to formulate a plan for
a system of public schools. That spring primary grade classes were held in two
locations with high school classes established later. The first Board of Educa-
tion was appointed on March 1, 1855 and by 1865 ninety pupils, fifty-five boys
and thirty-five girls, were in attendance.

A far-reaching law was passed by the State Legislature in 1873, setting aside
one-half of the public domain for the support of schools and authorizing any
incorporated city to provide for the gratuitious education of all children of
school age within its limits - thus permitting the establishment of independent
school districts. 1In 1875 the five schools, including one for Black children,
were placed under the supervision of C. Plagge.

By 1890, the system consisted of ten schools and the Superintendent was
J.E. Smith. All of the larger grammar schools were two-story white limestone
structures of four classrooms, two down and two upstairs, with an outside stair-
way leading from a lower porch to one above. The Administration Building is an
excellent example of this type of architecture.
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In 1899, the school system was chartered as an independent administrative
unit and control was removed from the City Council and placed in the hands of a
Board of Trustees, while keeping the same area as the municipality, thus establish-
ing the San Antonio Independent School District.
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Fourth ward School
San Antonio, Bexar Co., Texas

San Antonio Independent Schl Dist,1977
Oblique from southwest of the main

facade showing Building A to the

right and Building B to the left and

the gallery that joins the two.
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SAN ANTONIO ISD J/0
ADMINISTRATION BLDG.

NORTH FACADE (East half)
(Enclosure on 2nd floor porch
contains the ladies lounge)
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Honorable John G. Tower State Historic Preservation Officer
Honorable E. de la Garza Mr. Truett Latimer

Honorable Janmes M. Collins Executive Director

Honorable llenry B. Gonzalez Texas State Historical Commission
Honorable Olin E. Teague P.0. Box 12276, Capitol Station

Austin, Texas 78711
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